
 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov .uk 

Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel: 0345 605 3010 
 

  

 
 

30 November 2021 
 
Dear Councillor, 

 
 The next Meeting of the Council will be held on Wednesday, 8 December 2021 

in Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Leek at 6.30 pm. 
 
 The Agenda for the Meeting is attached at Appendix ‘A’. 

 
  

 
Yours faithfully, 

 

M. Trillo 
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer 

 

 
 

 
NOTE 

 
 
Councillors will be able to join this meeting online (but will not be able to vote on 

matters under consideration). 
 

Councillors using the Car Park at the rear of the Council Offices are requested to 
indicate on their car that it is being used by a Councillor whenever they use the Car 
Park, otherwise they may be challenged by the Council’s Car Park Attendant. 
 
 

You can view the agenda 

online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



APPENDIX A 

 

Prayers will be offered prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

 

1. Apologies for absence, if any.  

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

3. Urgent items of business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

4. Declarations of interest  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. Other Interests 

5. Chairman's or Leader's announcements and correspondence, if any.  

6. Receipt of petitions, if any.  

7. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.  

7 .1 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update (Pages 9 - 

18) 

 Recommendation 
 

That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2021. 

7 .2 Audit and Accounts Committee - Process for Appointing the External Auditor 
(Pages 19 - 28) 

 Recommendation 

 
That Council accepts the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt 

into the sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors to principal 
local government bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023. 

7 .3 Scrutiny Review (Pages 29 - 52) 

 Recommendations 

 
That Council: 
 

 Notes the outcome of the Scrutiny Review from CfGS as detailed in 
Appendix A. 

 Notes the comments from members as detailed in Appendix B and 
section 10.2 of the report. 

 Agrees the suggested response to the recommendations set out in 
Appendix C and section 11 of the report. 

8. Notices of Motion in accordance with Procedure Rule No. 8, if any.  

8 .1 Climate Change - Cllr N. Yates  

 That this Council will lobby our two Members of Parliament to ask them to: 
 

i) raise with the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities the need to make it a Statutory Duty for all local 



authorities to create and deliver a climate change action plan  
ii)  to give local authorities the powers and resources to deliver these 

plans [in line with national policies]. 

8 .2 Local Plan - Cllr D. Price  

 That this Council re-opens the relevant sections of the Local Plan and 

reviews it at the earliest opportunity in order that it can meet it's clear and 
pressing climate change emergency commitments. 

9. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.) 

10. To consider any political group appointments or changes to membership, if any.  

11. To consider, in accordance with Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

requests for a grant of dispensation to Councillors from attending meetings of the 
Council and its constituent bodies due to their present circumstances.  

12. Exclusion of the Press and Public:  

 The Chairman to move:- 
 

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 

transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 

Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 

13. To consider and debate any recommendations from the Cabinet, Overview and 

Scrutiny Panels and Committees, if any.  

14. To answer questions asked under Procedure Rule No. 10, if any.  

 At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 11.3.) 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor P Roberts (Chairman)   

 
 Councillors J Aberley, R Alcock, C J S Atkins, G Bentley, M Bowen, 

B Cawley, S Coleman, J Davies, M Deaville, B Emery, E Fallows, 
K Flunder, M Gledhill, T Hall, A Hart, N Hawkins, G Heath, 
I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, A Hulme, 

K J Jackson, P Jackson, B Johnson, J T Jones, L A Malyon, 
K Martin, L Page, I Plant, J Porter, D Price, S E Ralphs MBE, 

T Riley, P Routledge, J Salt, S Scalise, D Shaw, P Taylor, E Wain, 
R Ward, P Wilkinson, P Wood, M Worthington and N Yates 

 

APOLOGIES: Councillors G Bond, C Brady, S Ellis, H Plimley, I Lawson, L D Lea, 
T McNicol, J Redfern, H Sheldon MBE and L Swindlehurst 

 
Prayers were offered by Reverend Nigel Irons. 
 

20 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 30 June 2021 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest made. 

 
22 CHAIRMAN'S OR LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE, IF 

ANY. 
 

The Chairman of the Council confirmed that his charity ball would be held on 18 

March 2022 at the Alton Towers Hotel and that he planned to hold two charity 
quizzes with the support of Councillors Ward and Cawley.  The Chairman also 

congratulated Councillor Ward on the occasion of his upcoming wedding. 
 
The Leader of the Council also led tributes to the late Keith Hollins, a former 

Headteacher of Westwood College, Leek and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Staffordshire University Academies Trust. 

 
23 TO CONSIDER AND DEBATE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE CABINET, 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS AND COMMITTEES, IF ANY. 

 

23a AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

REPORT 2020/21 
 Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21 be approved. 

 
23b AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Treasury Management position as at 31st May 2021 be noted. 
 

24 CONSIDERATION OF DISPENSATION TO ALLOW ALL COUNCILLORS 

DISPENSATION FROM S.85 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 FOR A 
PERIOD OF 6 MONTHS 

 

Councillors considered a proposal to allow all councillors dispensation from S.85 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 for a period of six months. This was proposed given 

the issues that some councillors may encounter in attending face to face meetings 
due to the Coronavirus pandemic.  Councillors raised concerns with regards to the 

use of hybrid meetings and the inability to vote if not present in person.  Councillor 
Price requested that it be minuted that he would have preferred to be in the 
Chamber rather than attending online and that individual councillors should seek a 

dispensation if required.   It was subsequently proposed that a dispensation be 
issued to all councillors for a period of four months and that any further 

dispensations that may be required be granted to specific councillors at the 
December meeting of Council. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That a dispensation to allow all councillors dispensation from S.85 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 be granted for a period of four months. 
 

25 NOTICES OF MOTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE NO. 8, IF ANY. 
 

25a TREE CANOPY COVER - NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT - CLLR P. TAYLOR 
 

“To ensure the provision of adequate tree canopy cover on all new housing 

development in the Staffordshire Moorlands, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
should adopt the government’s 2021 National Planning Policy Framework and 

incorporate it, into both part one of the Council’s Climate Change plans and its 
forthcoming Tree Strategy.” 
 
Having been SECONDED, upon being put to the vote, the PROPOSAL was 
declared CARRIED. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That to ensure the provision of adequate tree canopy cover on all new housing 
development in the Staffordshire Moorlands, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

should adopt the government’s 2021 National Planning Policy Framework and 
incorporate it, into both part one of the Council’s Climate Change plans and its 
forthcoming Tree Strategy. 

 
 

 
 Page 6



 

 

 
26 TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER PROCEDURE RULE NO. 10, IF ANY. 

 
1. Question to the Leader of the Council received from Councillor C Atkins:  

 

“In the light of today’s arrangements for Full Council, what will be the future format of 
Full Council meetings in 2022?” 

 
Response: 

 

“It has been agreed by Group Leaders that tonight’s and December’s Full Council 
meeting will take place in a hybrid manner taking into account the data available with 

regards to the number of Covid cases locally (the Staffordshire Moorlands district 
currently has the highest 60 + years case rate in the West Midlands at 254 per 
100,000 people – a 42% increase in the last 7 days).  It has also been agreed with 

Group Leaders that the next cycle of meetings for the Council’s four Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels will also take place using the Council’s hybrid system. 

 
It is anticipated that Full Council meetings from February 2022 will meet as normal.  
The arrangements for meetings will be reviewed at the end of 2021 with the 

involvement of all political groups and will continue to be discussed and agreed at 
Group Leader meetings.  This will take into account the Council’s health and safety 

responsibilities and the latest Government data with regards to the number of Covid 
cases.   The Council will also monitor the latest legislative requirements which may 
be subject to change following the Government’s call for evidence earlier this year 

with regards to the conduct of local authority meetings.”  In response to 
supplementary questions the Leader of the Council explained that all members 

would be expected to be in attendance for consideration of the Council’s budget at 
its meeting in February 2022 and that there had been a great increase in the number 
of people in the Moorlands succumbing to Covid during the past week. 

 
 
2. Question to the Leader of the Council received from Councillor J Salt:  

 
“Can the Leader please provide a timeline for the restoration of the Miner’s lamps in 

Biddulph. Despite a multitude of emails and a question raised in February, they 
continue to rot. The Leader assured me two months ago that they’d be removed into 

storage until they could be restored, so why are they still there? Why haven’t the 
flower beds been tended to at the very least? Please can we see a timeline in 
response to this question that I can share with my constituents?” 

 
Response: 

 
Cllr Salt’s requests with regards to the maps had not been ignored.  The Council has 
had to tender for the work to be completed.  As the lamps were set in concrete a 

crane will be required to remove them.  A company has been found and the lamps 
will be removed and stored at the Council’s Fowlchurch depot.  There had been 

confusion with regards to the maintenance of the flowerbeds on the roundabout.  
Alliance Environmental Services were under the impression that Biddulph Town 
Council were responsible for this but this was wrong and they will address this as 

soon as the lamps are removed.  In response to supplementary questions the 
Leader explained that the lamps could not be restored in their current location and 

could not provide assurance that the lamps could be restored to due to their very 
poor condition. Page 7



 

 

27 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC: 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 

information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 

virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 
 

28 TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER PROCEDURE RULE NO. 10, IF ANY. 
 

1. The Leader of the Council replied to a question submitted by Councillor Cawley 

with regards to the Nolan principles.  In response to supplementary questions the 
Leader referred to the confidential update with regards to staffing matters 

provided at the Council meeting on 30 June 2021. 
 
2. The Portfolio Holder for Communities replied to a question submitted by 

Councillor Salt with regards to the use of CCTV cameras in Biddulph.  Councillor 
Bowen explained that the Council was committed to upgrading its CCTV system, 

involving a major financial investment, which demonstrated the Council’s 
commitment to making our district safe for all and that the improvements in 
Biddulph would be completed shortly. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 8.43 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 
Page 8



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22nd October 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non-specific 

 

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Update Report to 30th September 2021 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 

Treasury Management performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30th 
September 2021. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the 
Council in February 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, 
one of which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report. 

3.2 This report comprises the following: 

 The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19; 

 Investment income earned to date and projected for the year; 

 The current investment portfolio; 

 An update to the approved capital programme; and the projected borrowing 
requirements with associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7.1



  

 

 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2021/22. 

 

3.3 The main headlines are: 

 There is no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 
within the current financial year. 

 A small surplus of £4,000 is forecast against investment income interest. 

Interest on the Ascent loan and Debenture is forecast on target, but is subject 
to change pending the Ascent Delivery model review and any new loan 

arrangement. 

 The borrowing costs budget to support the existing Ascent loan balance and 

general fund borrowing requirement is forecasts a saving of £30,000, but could 
also be affected by the outcome of the same decisions on the Ascent loan. 

 The average return on investments during the period July to September was 

0.14%, this was boosted by the notice account investments, whereas instant 
access accounts earn interest at 0.01%. 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £21.7million spread across seven 
separate institutions as at 30th September 2021. 

 The Council’s external debt is forecast to be £13million by the end of the year 
at an average annual borrowing rate of 0.75%. 

 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 

Council’s main priorities. 
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council for 2021/22 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is 
a statement of fact and there are no options. 

 
 

 
John Betts 

Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Page 10



  

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

‘Treasury Management – Governance & Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ (Audit & Accounts Committee September 
2009) 
 
‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22’ (Audit & 
Accounts Committee February 2021) 

Keith Pointon 
Head of Finance 
Keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 

emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

Page 11

mailto:Keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

Appendix A 
    
    

    
    

 

 
 

 

Treasury Management Update  
30th September 2021 

 

 
1. Introduction  
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 
 

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management 
 

4. Investment Income 

 
5. Investment Portfolio 

 
6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 

 

7. Prudential Indicators  

Page 13



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management which recommends that Members should be updated on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year. 

 
1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 

treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 
management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are 

reported to full Council. 
 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was 

approved by Council on 12th February 2021. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 30th September 2021 and projects forward 

for the remainder of the financial year. 
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 

bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:  
 

% 
Dec-
21 

Mar-
22 

Jun-
22 

Sep-
22 

Dec-
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun-
23 

Sep-
23 

Dec-
23 

Mar-
24 

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

1.40 1.40 1.50 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 

10r PWLB 
rate 

1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 

25yr PWLB 

rate 
2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 

50yr PWLB 

rate 
2.00 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 

 
2.2. Link’s latest interest rate forecast has brought the Bank of England base rate 

increase to 0.25% further forward to the quarter ending June 2022, with rises to 
0.50% and 0.75% within the medium term. However this is unlikely to affect 

investment performance in the current year. PWLB rates are forecast to remain 
relatively constant, with a slow increase. The Council’s current year budgets 
were set anticipating this economic environment. 

 
3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management 

 
3.1. High volumes of income and expenditure continued to flow through the 

Council’s instant access accounts in the first half of the year while the Council 

acted as an agent of central government in the delivery of the various Business 

Page 14



  

Grant schemes. The counterparty limits in the 2021/22 Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement were set to be flexible to respond to this situation 
specifically; since the last report, the current account balance exceeded the limit 

by 4% for 2 days during August. 
 

4. Investment Income  

 
4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th September totalled £13,460. 

The Council has budgeted to receive £20,710 in investment income in 2021/22. 
The budget was set with an expectation of very low interest rates of near zero. 

A small surplus of £4,000 is anticipated against the budget at end of the year. 
 
4.2. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments is boosted by 

the better rates achieved in the Council’s notice accounts compared to the 
instant access average. 

 

Average interest rate period 
Average Rate 

Apr-Jun 
Average Rate 

Jul-Sept 

Overall 0.14% 0.14% 

Long-term fixed (>364 days)  n/a n/a 
Short-term fixed/ notice accounts (<364 days) 0.35% 0.37% 
Instant access 0.01% 0.01% 
   

   

Bank of England Base Rate 0.10% 0.10% 

 
Ascent Joint Venture 

 

4.3. The Council continues to provide two facilities to the joint venture company 
Ascent Housing LLP: the Debenture of £5million earns interest at 2%, the 

associated £100,000 income is on target against the budget; interest on the 
Loan of £14million is earned at a forecast average rate of 3.02% across the two 

£7million rolling 1 year tranches, earning an annual interest income of 
£422,880.  
 

4.4. Any changes to arrangements with Your Housing during the year (outlined in 
the Cabinet Report 18th June 2019) would impact this income. The existing 

£14million Loan is a priority debtor therefore would be repaid in full should the 
loan mature.  The £5million Debenture owed to the Council and similarly the 
£5million Debenture owed to Your Housing are of equal priority and are 

expected to be subject to an impairment. 
 
5. Investment Portfolio 

 
5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria.  The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 30th September totalled £21,684,000, as shown in the 

table below: 
 

Financial Institution 

Country 

of 
Domicile 

Amount 

Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration 

Interest 

rate at end 
of period 

Average 
Maturity 

NatWest Bank UK £6,784,000* BLUE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Aberdeen MMF UK £4,600,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Page 15



  

Santander UK £3,100,000 RED (6 months) 0.58% 180 day notice 

Federated MMF UK £2,300,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Santander UK £1,400,000 RED (6 months) 0.40% 95 day notice 

Standard Chartered 
Sustainable 

UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.08% 6 months fixed 

Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.05% 95 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.10% 65 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £500,000 RED (6 months) 0.30% 95 day notice 

TOTAL  £21,684,000    

MMF = Money Market Fund 

* Higher balances than usual held in the current account at month end due to the timing of income direct debits 
before month end and outgoing precept payments after. 

 
5.2. The average balance of funds available for investment for the year up to 30th 

September was £19.2million. Both average balances for the year and the total 

portfolio are larger than usual due to Covid 19 grants being held whilst business 
grant schemes are administered. The net balance of funds held at the end of 

September was £2.7million. 
 
 Ethical investing 

 
5.3. The Council currently holds £2,500,000 in financial investments with 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) links, sometimes known as 
Ethical Investing and encompassing the Climate Change agenda. These are 
included in the investment portfolio table above, but are also highlighted here: 

 

Product Amount ESG merits 

Barclays ‘Green’  
(95 day notice 
account) 

£500,000 Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which 

covers ‘a variety of thematic projects including energy efficiency, 
renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture 
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission 

reduction’. 
Barclays ‘Green’  

(65 day notice 
account) 

£1,000,000 

Standard Chartered 
‘Sustainable’ Deposit 
(6 month fixed term) 

£1,000,000 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and 
Sustainable Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero 
hunger; good health and well-being; quality education; gender 

equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean energy;  
decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and 
infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 

communities; responsible consumption and production; climate 
action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong 
institutions; partnerships for the goals'. 

TOTAL £2,500,000 11.53% of total portfolio 

 
 
 

Page 16



  

6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 
 
Capital Programme Update 

 

6.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 
funding: 
 

 
TMSS 2021/22 

Estimate 

Current 
Estimate 

(includes 20/21 
carry forwards) 

Total Capital Expenditure £4,689,000 £4,831,000 

   
Funded by:   
    Capital Receipts £25,000 £25,000 
    External Funding £1,512,000 £1,520,000 
    Reserves £0 £88,000 
Net Financing Requirement £3,152,000 £3,198,000 

   
Capital Financing Requirement   
  Opening CFR £18,163,000 £18,083,000 

    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £3,152,000 £3,198,000 
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£87,000) (£86,000) 
  Closing CFR £21,228,000 £21,195,000 

 

6.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2021/22 forecast expenditure is now 
estimated at £3,198,000: the increase being due to the reprofiling of some 
programmes from the previous year. 

 
6.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to ensure 

that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR represents 
the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from 
either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's 

underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure and is derived by 
aggregating specified items for the Council's balance sheet. On the basis of the 

latest forecasts, the Council's capital investment plans remain affordable. 
 

 

Borrowing Position 

 
6.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 

Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved TMSS. 

 
6.5. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £15million which 

fully funded the Ascent Loan balance plus £1million of the general fund capital 
financing requirement. £7million of local authority borrowing is due to mature 
during the year, including £2million which matured in May and £1million in 

August, none of which has yet been refinanced. Refinancing and new borrowing 
will be kept under review during the year as the capital programme is carried 

out, and if any changes to the Ascent loan relationship occur, alongside views 
about cash flow and opportunities to take borrowing at cheap levels vs internal 
borrowing in the low interest income environment.  

Page 17



  

 
6.6. The average interest on borrowing is forecast at 0.75% for the year. There is a 

potential saving forecast of £30,000 against the borrowing cost budget of 

£224,580. 
 

6.7. The ‘operational boundary’ (£33,049,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£34,549,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements.  They were set through 

the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 

and funding of the loan to the Joint Venture Company, Ascent. The current level 
of borrowing is well within prudential limits. 
 

6.8. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external 
borrowing to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not 

exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest 
rates could be high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

 
 
6.9. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e. 

reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce 
the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the 
interest payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to 

the Council taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on 
early redemption compared to the potential interest savings. No debt 
rescheduling has taken place during the year. 

 
7. Prudential Indicators 

 
7.1. The Council complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and has 

operated within the treasury management and prudential indicators set in its 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22. 

Page 18



 Page 1 of 10 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Audit & Accounts Committee  
 

3 December 2021 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for 

the five-year period from 2023/24. 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee recommends that Council:  
 

Accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 

bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023. 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and 

including the audit of the 2022/23 accounts. The Council opted into the 

‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment arrangements established by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts 

for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

3.2 PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 

audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. During Autumn 2021 all local government bodies 

need to make a decision about their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. 

They have options to arrange their own procurement and make the appointment 

themselves or in conjunction with other bodies, or they can join and take 

advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. 

3.3 The report concludes that, on balance, the sector-wide procurement conducted 

by PSAA will produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the 

Council than a procurement undertaken locally because: 

 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the Council; 

TITLE: Process for Appointing the External Auditor 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader SMDC   

CONTACT OFFICERS:  John Betts – Interim Executive Director 

    Keith Pointon -  Head of Finance  

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7.2



 Page 2 of 10 

 if the Council does not use the national appointment arrangements, it will 

need to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and 

independent members to oversee a local auditor procurement and 

ongoing management of an audit contract and this will be expensive and 

disproportionately burdensome; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, 

registered auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a 

local procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is 

a continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and 

long term. 

 
3.4 If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 

arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the 

decision at full Council. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the 

Council needs to return completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 An effective external audit service will help ensure the Council uses resources 

effectively and provides value for money.   
 
5.       Options and Analysis 

 

5.1 The options available (including running a local procurement or joining in the 

national framework) are analysed in the report.  
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
None 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when 

the current contracts end. The scope of audit has increased, requiring 

more audit work. There are also concerns about capacity and 

sustainability in the local audit market. 

Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure 

fees are as realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is 

maintained. 

If the national scheme is not used some additional resource will be 

needed to establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. 

Page 20



 Page 3 of 10 

Until a procurement exercise is completed it is not possible to state 

what, if any, additional resource may be required for audit fees from 

2023/24.  

 
6.5 Legal 

Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the 

Council to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year 

not later than 31 December in the preceding year.  

Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the 

Council must consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel 

on the selection and appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides 

that where a relevant Council operates executive arrangements, the 

function of appointing a local auditor to audit its accounts is not the 

responsibility of an executive. 

Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The 

Council must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct 

the Council to appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a 

local auditor on behalf of the Council.  

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in 

relation to an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  

This power has been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary of State the 

ability to enable a sector-led body to become the appointing person. In 

July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the appointing 

person. 

 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  None 

 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

The principal risks are that the Council: 

 fails to appoint an auditor in accordance with the requirements 
and timing specified in local audit legislation; or 

 does not achieve value for money in the appointment process.  
These risks are considered best mitigated by opting into the sector-led 

approach through PSAA. 
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 

Page 21



 Page 4 of 10 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 

 

 

Moorlands House 

 

John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 
07581 010628 

 
 

  

Page 22

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


 Page 5 of 10 

Decision to Opt Into the National Scheme for Auditor Appointments Managed by 

PSAA as the “Appointing Person”   

 

7. Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

7.1. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial 

year.  The council has three options;  

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set 

out in the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a 
body designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  

The body currently designated for this role is Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA).  

7.2. In order to opt into the national scheme, a council must make a decision at a 
meeting of the Full Council.   

 

8. The Appointed Auditor 

8.1. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the Council in each 

financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  
The appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by 
electors and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest 

Reports and statutory recommendations.   

8.2. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the 

procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 
qualified and independent.  

8.3. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial 

Reporting Council (FRC) and employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee 
the work. There is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key Audit 

Partners.  

8.4. Auditors are currently regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new 
body with wider powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) 

during the course of the next audit contract.  

8.5. Therefore, the Council has very limited influence over the nature of the audit 

services they are procuring.  The nature and quality of the audits are largely 
determined or overseen by third parties.    

9. Appointment Options 

9.1. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act. This 
would require the Council to:  

Page 23



 Page 6 of 10 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone 
appointment. The auditor panel would need to be set up by the Council 
itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of 

independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for 
this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former 

elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This 
means that elected members will not have a majority input to assessing 
bids and choosing to which audit firm to award the contract  

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel.   

9.2. Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 

establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this would need to be constituted of wholly 
or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required 

on the exact constitution of such a panel, having regard to the obligations of 
each Council under the Act.  Informal liaison with surrounding local authorities 
has elicited no appetite for such an arrangement. 

 

10. The National Auditor Appointment Scheme 

10.1. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government 

under the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015. PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the 

first appointing period, covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

It is now undertaking the work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the 

next appointing period, from the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a 

procurement for audit services. PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose 

costs are around 4% of the scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme 

members.   

10.2. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each 

of the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 

formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible 
with other constraints (this is a key consideration for the Alliance); 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price 
criteria are satisfied; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit 

and managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment 
period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 

scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these 

reflect scale, complexity, and audit risk; and 

 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once 

these have been let. Page 24



 Page 7 of 10 

11. Pressures in the Current Local Audit Market and Delays in Issuing Opinions 

11.1. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last 

awarded in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had 

been few changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing 

over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme 

and this attracted competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts 

took effect from 1 April 2018. 

11.2. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector led to a 

series of reviews regarding the role of auditors and the focus and value of their 

work. Four independent reviews were commissioned by Government:  

 Sir John Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), 

the audit regulator;  

 the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market;  

 Sir Donald Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; 

and  

 Sir Tony Redmond’s review of local authority financial reporting and 

external audit.  

11.3. The recommendations are now under consideration by Government, with the 

clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A new audit regulator 

(ARGA) is being established and arrangements for “system leadership” in local 

audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other recommendations 

are implemented. The Audit committee has already considered the 

Government’s progress on responding to these recommendations.  

11.4. The Kingman review led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid 

improvements in audit quality. This created a major pressure for audit firms to 

ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements. To deliver improvements in 

audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work 

to gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more 

time, posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target 

date for publication of audited accounts.  

11.5. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and 

retention challenges and the complexity of local government financial 

statements.  Covid-19 creating further significant pressure for audit teams.  

11.6. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges 

have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and poor responses to 

tender invitations have been experienced.  

12. The Invitation & the Next Audit Procurement 

12.1. PSAA is now inviting the Council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 

2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level 

Page 25



 Page 8 of 10 

of opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and 

appoint a suitable firm to be the Council’s auditor.  

12.2. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 

determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA will: 

 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 

scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of 
bodies; 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies. Pooling 

means that everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices 
secured via a competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the 

national collective scheme; 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4% of scheme costs, and as a 
not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. 

In 2019 it returned a total £3.5million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a 
further £5.6million was returned.  

12.3. PSAA will seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will 
be able to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match 
their available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. 

They will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect 
realistic market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the 

supporting information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes 
are in train which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, 
firms will be informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids.  

12.4. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 
(currently published by the National Audit Office)1, the format of the financial 

statements (specified by CIPFA2) and the application of auditing standards 

regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of 
whether an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses 
to make its own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they 

shape the work auditors undertake and have a material bearing on the actual 
fees required. 

12.5. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and 
other relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local 
procurement exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national 

procurement exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence 
issues. Local firms cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the 

same audit scope and requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the 
auditor’s statutory responsibilities. 

13. Assessment of Options  

13.1. If the Council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 

auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need 

                                                                 
1 MHCLG’s Spring statement proposes that overarching responsibility for Code w ill in due course transfer to the system leader, 
namely ARGA, the new  regulator being established to replace the FRC. 
2
 CIPFA = Chartered Institute for Public Finance & Accounting  Page 26



 Page 9 of 10 

to be set up by the Council itself and the members of the panel must be wholly 

or a majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent 

members for this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and 

former elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This 

means that elected members would not have any major input to assessing bids 

and choosing to which audit firm to award a contract for the Council’s external 

audit.  

13.2. Alternatively, the Act enables the Council to join with other authorities to 

establish a joint auditor panel. Again, this would need to be constituted of wholly 

or a majority of independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required 

on the exact constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each 

Council under the Act. Neighbouring local authorities have expressed no 

appetite to consider such an arrangement. 

13.3. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the 

Council, and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would 

be likely to result in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to 

manage quality and independence requirements through a local appointment 

process. The Council is unable to influence the scope of the audit and the 

regulatory regime inhibits the Council’s ability to affect quality.  

13.4. The Council and its auditor panel would also need to maintain ongoing oversight 

of the contract. Local contract management cannot, however, influence the 

scope or delivery of an audit. 

13.5. The national offer provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 

limited administrative cost to the Council. By joining the scheme, the Council 

would be acting with other Councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the 

market that a national procurement provides.    

14. Recommendation & Way Forward 

14.1. It is disappointing that PSAA appear not to acknowledge their role in the system 

that has precipitated the recent decline in the timeliness of audits, despite being 

instrumental in establishing a tender evaluation model that valued cost over 

quality and producing no discernible ongoing contract and performance 

management on behalf of local government. However, it is acknowledged that 

there are broader systemic issues in play and there is no alternative to PSAA 

available at a national level. The costs and risks of undertaking the tender 

process locally are too great, largely due to onerous national standards and 

requirements. Therefore, the recommended approach is to opt-in to the national 

auditor appointment scheme.   

14.2. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires 

that a decision to opt-in must be made by a meeting of the Council (meeting as 

a whole).   

14.3. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 

specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

Page 27



 Page 10 of 10 

14.4. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 

expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on 

the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 

deadline of 31 December 2022.  

Page 28



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Council 
 

8th December 2021 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Appendices Attached 
Appendix A – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) – Scrutiny Review 

Appendix B – Scrutiny Review Workshop – Notes from Breakout Group 
Discussions  
Appendix C – CfGS Recommendations – Suggested Response   

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is consider the response to the feedback provided 

by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) following completion of 
their recent review of the Council’s Scrutiny arrangements, after consultation 
with all members, and to agree the Council’s actions in response .  

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Council:  

 

 Notes the outcome of the Scrutiny Review from CfGS as detailed in 

Appendix A. 

 Notes the comments from members as detailed in Appendix B and section 

10.2 of this report. 

 Agrees the suggested response to the recommendations set out in 

Appendix C and section 11 of this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 CfGS were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review of the Council’s 

Overview & Scrutiny arrangements. The review was conducted earlier this 
year and the conclusions were reported back to the Council in April. Their 

report is attached at Appendix A.  

TITLE: Scrutiny Review 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader 

  
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7.3



  

 
3.2 An all member workshop was held in September to enable CfGS to share their 

findings and to provide an opportunity for councillors to give some initial 

feedback. The notes from the discussions at the workshop are attached at 
Appendix B. It was suggested and agreed at the workshop that each of the 

Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Panels should be given the opportunity to 
discuss the findings further and consider how the Council should take the 
recommendations forward.    

 
3.3 CfGS make 12 recommendations for improvement. Attached at Appendix C is 

a summary of CfGS’s recommendations, with a suggested response, which 
has been considered at each Overview & Scrutiny Panel in November 2021. 

 

3.4 This report is presented to Full Council following consideration of the review by 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels (comments received are contained in section 

10.2 of this report) and in order to agree the way forward in responding to the 
review.   

 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 Effective scrutiny is essential in order that the Council can successfully 
achieve its objectives and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage 

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
None 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 

 
6.5 Legal 

The Council’s Constitution Working Group will need to work 

through the detail of any final proposals for change including 
considering the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution. 

 
6.6 Climate Change 

None 

Page 30



  

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
Feedback was provided by the CfGS to an all member workshop.  

Further consultation with councillors has taken place via the latest 
cycle of panel meetings. 

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 
As attached to the report 

Andrew Stokes 
Chief Executive 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 31

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


  

 
7. Background and Introduction 

 

7.1 Maintaining effective scrutiny is a challenge for all local authorities and no 
council can profess excellence in scrutiny across the board – there are always 

areas of weakness which, left untended, can develop into flaws in scrutiny 
which can have a more significant impact on effectiveness overall.  

 

7.2 The Council has not undertaken a comprehensive review of its scrutiny 
arrangements for some time and it was therefore considered to be appropriate 

to conduct a review for two purposes: 
 

 In order to give assurance about existing practices; and 

 Challenge and provide further improvements.  
 

7.3 The Local Government Association (LGA) were approached to ascertain the 
most appropriate way forward for conducting a review. The LGA referred the 
Council to the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS).  

 
7.4 The CfGC provides external support to give assurance and advice on 

improving governance in local authorities. They offer a number of 
improvement reviews which help local authorities to evaluate and improve 
their overview and scrutiny functions – governed by the fundamental [“four 

principles” of good scrutiny] that were first developed nearly twenty years ago.  
 

7.5 During the COVID-19 pandemic, CfGS developed ‘step back reviews’. These 
reviews are geared to give the opportunity for councils to conduct short, sharp 
reviews to identify lessons learned to inform the approach to any new 

arrangements that emerge for the ‘new normal’. The review is designed to be 
challenging, but essentially also to be constructive in suggesting ways to drive 

forward improvement.  
 
7.6 Consequently with the support of the Council’s political group leaders, CfGS 

were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review. The LGA agreed to fund 
50% of the cost of conducting the review. 

 
7.7 The review was conducted earlier this year and the conclusions were reported 

back to the Council in April. An all member workshop was held in September 

to enable the CfGS to share their findings and to provide an opportunity for 
councillors to give some initial feedback. 

 
7.8 It was suggested and agreed at the workshop that each of the Council’s 

Overview & Scrutiny Panels should be given the opportunity to discuss the 

findings further and consider how the Council should take the 
recommendations forward.  Reports were subsequently presented to panels in 

November 2021.    
 
 
8 CfGS Review 

  

8.1 The review was short and simple based on assessing the following:  

Page 32



  

  
 Culture. The relationships, communication and behaviours underpinning 

the operation of the overview and scrutiny process. This will also involve 

the Council’s corporate approach, organisational commitment, and status 
of scrutiny.  

 Member engagement. Are members motivated and engaged. How do 

they participate, take responsibility, and self-manage their role?  
 Member skills and application. Are skills up-to-date and can Members 

participate fully or are there development gaps?  
 Information. How information is prepared, shared, accessed and used in 

the service of the scrutiny function.  
 Impact. Ways to ensure that scrutiny is effective, that it makes a tangible 

and positive difference to the effectiveness of the council, and to local 
people.   

 Focus. How prioritisation, timeliness and relevance of the work 

programme and agendas lead to value-adding and productivity.   
 Structure. Formats used by scrutiny to carry out its works and their 

effectiveness.   
  

8.2 It involved conversations with members and officers, observation of meetings 
(recordings or live online), a review of key documents; agendas, work 
programmes etc and a short member survey.  

  
8.3 This methodology aligns with both latest statutory guidance and best practice 

experience accumulated by CfGS over many years. This review therefore 
evaluated the Council’s approach to scrutiny in the light of the guidance and 
best-practice with a view to help to explore with members ways to improve 

scrutiny.  
 

  
9 Outcome from the Review 

 

9.1 CfGS’s report back to the Council following completion of the review is 
attached at Appendix A. 

 
9.2 CfGS concluded that ‘Scrutiny has the conditions for success’ and further 

that ‘there are no critical issues for scrutiny at SMDC and the 

contributions that scrutiny makes are seen as mostly positive’. 
  

9.3 The Council wide buy-in for scrutiny was recognised, and there was significant 
praise given to the Democratic Services team and all officers involved in 
supporting scrutiny at SMDC. 

  
9.4 During the feedback given to CfGS throughout the review, working groups 

were highlighted as a model example of successful scrutiny. Both members 
and officers consider they have worked well and there is strong evidence of 
them making an impact on issues such as waste and recycling services. It was 

noted by CfGS that it would be valuable to learn what makes working groups 
successful in SMDC, continuing those activities, and applying these 

techniques to committee working or expanding their use. 
 

Page 33



  

9.5 CfGS provided feedback on the following issues: 
 

 Clarity on scrutiny’s role and responsibilities 

 Collaborative approach to scrutiny 

 Scrutiny – Executive relationship 

 Scrutiny’s focus 

 Work programming 

 Meeting preparation 

 Chairing 

 Member development 

 Committee structure and timetabling 

 External engagement 
 
9.6 CfGS make 12 recommendations for improvement. These are detailed in the 

report attached at Appendix A.  
 

 
10 Taking the Recommendations Forward 

 

10.1  CfGS presented their report to an all member workshop which was held on 
29th September 2021. Members had the opportunity to feed back their initial 

thoughts on the findings contained within the report. A summary of the 
discussion at the workshop is attached at Appendix B. 

 

10.2 It was agreed at this workshop that each of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels should have the opportunity to discuss the findings further at their next 

meetings.  Reports were subsequently presented to Panels that met in 
November 2021.  Councillors underlined the need for strong scrutiny 
arrangements and expressed broad support for the suggested response to the 

CfGS recommendations (contained in Appendix C to this report).  Members 
also recognised that some aspects could be dealt with more quickly than 

others and that Full Council should be presented with a “progress update” with 
regards to the further consideration of the suggested response.  The following 
comments were also made by councillors during debate: 

 

 Responses to questions to Portfolio Holders should be in writing rather 

than being verbally provided at meetings. 

 It would be useful to conduct a skills audit of councillors that could help 

inform the selection of chairs and vice chairs. 

 The creation of an Overview and Scrutiny Programming Group would help 
to make scrutiny more proactive and improve the long-term planning for the 

creation of agendas and help to “horizon scan” for potential scrutiny items. 

 Earlier involvement in the decision-making process would enable scrutiny 

to be less reactive in its approach. 

 Although there was acknowledgement of the recommendation to reduce 

the number of panels, there was concern raised with regards to any 
reduction in the number of members sitting on each panel given the need 
to ensure that all councillors were represented and had the opportunity to 

participate in scrutiny. 

Page 34



  

 The Service Delivery and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panels were 
seen to be particularly important in scrutinising all aspects of the Council. 

 

 
11       Next Steps 

 
11.1  Given the broad support expressed by members at the scrutiny panels for the 

suggested response proposed at Appendix C it is recommended the Council 

agrees this as the way forward in responding to the review. 
 

11.2   It is recommended that the suggested improvements are progressed as 
follows, with the member committee/officer responsibility highlighted in bold, 
together with the proposed start date for each area of work:  

 
 Member Development – to be considered by the Member Development 

Working Group – January 2022 
 

 Programme of training / development for non-executive councillors  

 Ongoing training and development for Chairs / Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 
 

Cabinet / Scrutiny Relationship – to be considered by the Constitution 
Review Working Party – March 2022 

 

 Review Executive/Scrutiny Protocol 
 

Scrutiny Focus – to be organised by Democratic Services – December 
2021 

 

 Establish Overview & Scrutiny Programming Group including Cabinet / O & 
S Panel Chairs / Opposition Group Leaders to review and monitor Scrutiny 

Work Programmes 

 Reorder Overview & Scrutiny Panel’s agendas to consider work 

programming at the start of the meeting (now implemented) 
 

Meeting Work Programme and Preparation – to be considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Programming Group – January 2022 
 

 Develop approach with Chairs of Panels to consider pre-meetings and 
preparation work  

 Consider Cabinet Work Programme and agree forward plan of scrutiny 
work 

 Annual scrutiny workshop to confirm Work Programmes 

 Consider structure of Panels and potential to create sub-groups to focus on 
specific areas of work  

 Explore and experiment with ways to allow greater public access, 
openness and involvement 

 
 

Committee Structure & Timetabling – to be considered by the Constitution              
Review Working Party – March 2022 

Page 35



  

 

 Review number of Overview & Scrutiny Panels 
 

  11.3 A further report will be presented to Full Council to provide an update on 
progress made with regards to the above improvements and to make any 

further recommendations as necessary. 

Page 36



 

 

Andrew Stokes 

Chief Executive 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

April 2021 

 

Dear Andrew, 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Short Scrutiny Improvement Review – CfGS consultancy support 

I am writing to thank you for inviting the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) to carry out an 
evaluation of the Council’s scrutiny function. This letter provides feedback on our review findings 
and offers suggestions on how the Council could develop its scrutiny process. We would like the 
opportunity as part of this process to facilitate a workshop with Members and Officers, to reflect on 
this review and to discuss options for improvement. 

 

Background Following a successful review at High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) commissioned CfGS to review the Council’s scrutiny arrangements through its Scrutiny Panels.  

The purpose of the review was to give the Council an external perspective on how well the current 
model of scrutiny is functioning, and fulfilling its essential role of policy shaping, holding the 
Executive to account and reviewing issues of importance to local communities. 
 
CfGS undertook a review of the current scrutiny arrangements, involving two days of evidence 
gathering through conversations with Members and Officers on 18th and 19th January 2021. In 
addition, we observed Scrutiny Panel meetings, reviewed key documents, and created and 
analysed a Member survey. 
 
CfGS met with 16 Members and 5 Officers, including the Council Leader, Group Leaders, Scrutiny 
Chairs, Members of the Scrutiny Panels, the Council’s senior leadership team as well as 
Governance and Democratic Services Officers. 
 
The review was conducted by the CfGS staff: 

 Jacqui McKinlay – Chief Executive - Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

 Kate Grigg – Senior Research Officer – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

 
The findings and recommendations presented in this letter are intended to advise SMDC in 
strengthening the quality of scrutiny activities, increasing the impact of its outputs, and through its 
Members, to develop a strong and shared understanding of the role and capability of the scrutiny 
function. 
 
 
 
 
 
Summary of findings 

 
1. Positive areas to build upon 

 
1.1. Scrutiny has the conditions for success 

Page 37



 

 

 
Overall, there are no critical issues with scrutiny at SMDC and the contributions that scrutiny 
makes are seen as mostly positive. It was recognised that improvement was needed to ensure the 
time and resource dedicated to scrutiny delivered more impact and greater value. 
 
The conditions for successful scrutiny are present at SMDC; scrutiny enjoys significant support 
from senior Officers and democratic services, the Executive recognises the benefits of scrutiny in 
good governance, and Members of scrutiny want to ensure improved outcomes for communities. 

Considering the changes in SMDC’s political composition since the 2019 local elections, there is 
now a need for the Council to reflect on how they to adapt existing ways of working that embraces 
and responds to more effective and robust challenge. Scrutiny itself should remain politically 
neutral but the dynamics have obviously altered, creating an opportunity for Scrutiny Members, 
and the Executive, to consider its role and how they best work together to challenge, support and 
advise. 

1.2. Officer support 

 
At the senior Officer level there is wide buy-in for scrutiny and it is clear that the Council’s 
corporate management team is committed to supporting scrutiny. In addition, the relevant Director 
being assigned to each committee sends a message of organisational commitment across the 
Council and is seen as adding value to the work of each panel.  
 

We would like to highlight the praise given to the democratic services team and all Officers 
involved in supporting scrutiny at SMDC. Unprompted comments were made to us about the 
quality and responsiveness of Officer support, and the feedback from Members is amongst the 
most positive we have heard when conducting reviews.  
 

1.4. Working groups 

When asked about the most successful scrutiny work at SMDC, many answers nominated the 
working groups as a model example. Members and Officers consider they have worked well and 
there is strong evidence of them making an impact on issues such as waste and recycling 
services.  

It would be valuable to learn what makes working groups successful in SMDC, continuing those 
activities, and applying these techniques to committee working or expanding their use. 
 

2. Suggested areas of improvement 
 
2.1. Clarity on scrutiny’s role and responsibilities 

 

Scrutiny’s overall role is to hold the Executive to account, to carry out policy development, 
contribute to improved decision-making, and channel the voice of the public. Generally, this role is 
well understood, and most Members are able to articulate the purpose and contribution scrutiny 
should be making. However, it appears that in practice, challenge is not as robust as it ought to be 
from Members of the administration, and some felt that scrutiny was sometimes being used by the 
opposition for political purposes.  

 Our conversations suggest a need for more clarity on how scrutiny’s role is undertaken in a 
cross-party manner. This is about developing a shared understanding of the particular and 
unique way for scrutiny to add value to council governance. On a strategic level, there 
needs to be more of an emphasis on seeing scrutiny as a vital part of council business and 
governance, with clear ownership regarding its important role in improving policy and 
holding to account.  

Page 38



 

 

 
2.2. Collaborative approach to scrutiny 

 

Scrutiny is meant to be a forum for the evidence-based discussion of issues affecting local people. 
Most agreed with the principle that scrutiny is more effective when it is a collaborative approach 
between Members, with politics left at the door (as much as is practicably possible), and an equal 
voice given to all. Members recognised this and could give examples of when scrutiny has dealt 
with contentious matters, and the importance of having strong and productive working relationships 
within committees. 

There is evidence that the tone taken in questioning within scrutiny can at times be perceived as 
combative rather than constructive, which diminishes scrutiny as a forum for open and candid 
exchange. Members should have regard to the expectations set out in the Council’s Member Code 
of Conduct regarding respectful behaviour and leading by example. 

There is a mixed level of engagement from some scrutiny Members, and as indicated, Members of 
the opposition tend to show greater levels of involvement within committee meetings. Effective 
challenge from all Members of scrutiny and an active opposition are healthy governance 
behaviours in any democratic body.  

 There was a broad agreement that all Members have a duty to uphold their responsibilities 
as a scrutineer, attend meetings and work towards a shared goal in their committee. This is 
an aspect that needs further emphasis. 
 

2.3. Scrutiny – Executive relationship 

 
It is important to have a culture of trust, transparency and mutual respect between scrutiny and the 
Executive, to enable open and candid exchanges. Without regular communication and information 
sharing, scrutiny will be unable to act in a supportive capacity to the Executive. Positive 
engagement between the Executive and scrutiny, both formal and informal, is vital to the scrutiny 
process. 
 
We heard that overall, there is limited challenge of Executive decisions, with opposition Members 
tending to undertake this vital task of scrutiny. To achieve effective democratic accountability 
scrutiny, through collective endeavour, needs to focus on the Executive, ensuring questions are 
directed to the relevant portfolio holder and focused on clear priorities. 
  
There is evidence of Officers in some cases being scrutinised more than Executive Members. The 
experience from elsewhere is that when Executive Members attend and are the focus of the 
questioning, a more strategic exchange takes place and better recommendations achieved. 
 
The ‘Protocol on Portfolio Holders’ Involvement in the Scrutiny Process’ in SMDC’s constitution 
highlights regular engagement and the benefit scrutiny receives from Executive Members’ 
expertise in their given portfolio, as well as the benefit the Executive receives from scrutiny’s 
feedback.  
 

 SMDC may consider reviewing the Executive-Scrutiny protocol to outline and reaffirm 
expectations, and to improve communication and co-ordination between scrutiny and the 
Executive. An Executive-Scrutiny protocol should deal with the practical workings of 
scrutiny as well as the cultural dynamics. It might also be useful for feedback on scrutiny’s 
recommendations to be formalised within the protocol, in order for the panels to monitor the 
progress of their output.  

 
2.4. Scrutiny’s focus 

 

Page 39



 

 

There is a recognition that scrutiny needs to focus more on strategic issues, where it can have 
influence, and that scrutiny should input into the decision-making process at an earlier stage than it 
does currently. The overall high quality of scrutiny’s working groups is evidence that this part of the 
system is working well. However, scrutiny work in committee does not always benefit from the 
same focus.  
 
Scrutiny should focus its attention on cross-cutting issues which affect communities across the 
district, avoiding parochial issues affecting single wards. There are missed opportunities for 
scrutiny to add value and to be an integral part of the Council’s corporate plans and overall 
improvement.  
 

 For scrutiny to be more strategic there needs to be change from both scrutiny and the 
Executive. If the Council wants more emphasis on shaping policy, challenging and holding 
to account, then scrutiny will need earlier access to and involvement with the core policy 
and decision-making activities of the Executive. 

 
There are some examples of duplication, in the Health Scrutiny Panel we heard of the same issues 
being considered by SMDC and the County Council’s health scrutiny - dedicating time to issues 
which are unlikely to change or be influenced by recommendations.  
 
Some panels would benefit from a clearer focus on where the committee can add value or 
influence change. For the majority of the substantive items on scrutiny agendas there is not a 
clearly articulated outcome from scrutiny’s consideration of the topic. When topics are reviewed the 
focus tends to be operational rather than strategic or outcome focused. Often, reports do not ask 
Members to “do” anything other than to note them and recommendations at the scrutiny meetings 
could also be sharper in their focus.  
 

 We noted that scrutiny could be more involved in the budget process, and at an earlier 
stage for any meaningful input. Scrutinising the Council’s finances, including the medium-
term financial plan, monitoring financial and operational performance, together with 
commercial partnerships and other external arrangements does not seem to be sufficiently 
explored.  

 
We have produced guidance, in partnership with CIPFA, on financial scrutiny1 setting out scrutiny 
activity to complement the council’s annual financial cycle. The guide suggests ways to move 
budget and finance scrutiny beyond set-piece scrutiny ‘events’ in December and quarterly financial 
performance scorecards being reported to committee. 
 

2.5. Work programming 
 
Work programming is key to ensuring scrutiny stays focussed on strategic issues where it can 
make an impact, whilst making the best use of time and resources. In this respect prioritisation is 
essential, and scrutiny could benefit from an agreed methodology to filter and select topics for the 
work programme (we have provided some examples of scrutiny work programming 
selection/prioritisation tools in the Appendix). Furthermore, scrutiny will need to organise a work 
programme that is Member-led in order to have ownership over committee activity.  
 
Work programming does appear to be more effective in Resources Scrutiny Panel, than other 
committees.  
 

                                                 
1
 CfGS & CIPFA (2020) ‘Financial scrutiny, practice guide’ - https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf  

Page 40

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf


 

 

 We recommend an annual process for developing the work programme across all of the 
scrutiny committees, engaging Members, Officers, partners and the public to prioritise the 
topics for review. This will help avoid duplication and ensure that Members’ work in scrutiny 
makes the most effective contribution possible on the most important issues to the district. 
Work programming could take place through a Member workshop, where a shortlist of 
priority topics for the next 12 months are identified according to a selection criteria, 
discussed on their merit for scrutiny, and voted on.  

 
It is important to emphasise that work programming is an ongoing process and not just a one-off 
event. Whilst a workshop will help identify priorities and provide structure to work for the months 
ahead, there will need to be flexibility in the work programme and time set aside to regularly revisit 
the relevance of topics as the local context changes.  
 

 Currently the work programme is the last item on the agenda at scrutiny meetings, we 
would recommend bringing it to the beginning, so it can benefit from more considered 
discussion rather than being subject to the inevitable end of meeting fatigue.  
 

2.6. Meeting preparation 
 

From our observations of committees, there is little evidence of co-ordinated questions (outside of 
the designated portfolio holder question time) or Members acting as a team with clear lines of 
inquiry. It has been highlighted that a number of Members do not prepare sufficiently for scrutiny 
meetings, leading to the presentation of Officer reports that should have been read in advance and 
a missed opportunity for insightful questioning. It is important the time spent in committee is well 
spent.  

A small number of Members felt that reports were long and make demanding reading, which may 
prevent some Members from fully engaging. The practice of submitting reports for noting, for 
information, or inviting speakers only to share information, should be avoided. All of the above 
measures regarding meeting preparation will result in shorter, sharper meetings. 

 SMDC should consider introducing pre-meetings before formal committee between all 
scrutiny Members to provide the space to set common objectives and possibly to reach 
consensus on lines of enquiry and questioning strategy.  

 
2.7. Chairing 

 

Scrutiny’s success is dependent on the right Members, with the right capabilities and attributes, 
leading and managing the scrutiny function. Current chairs at SMDC have varying levels of 
confidence in being able to lead and manage the scrutiny function in a timely and effective manner. 

Chairs have an important role in providing leadership, modelling constructive behaviour and 
ensuring well managed meetings. In some committee meetings, chairs failed to keep meetings on 
track by allowing lengthy contributions, drift or repetition. For every item on the agenda there 
should be an overall purpose in scrutinising it, and it is the role of the chair to focus the panel’s 
attention on this - the question should always be ‘Why is this coming to scrutiny and what is its 
purpose?’. 

The lack of opposition Members involved in scrutiny chairing roles was raised as an issue in our 
evidence gathering. There is no single ‘right’ approach to selecting chairs - the emphasis ought to 
be on selecting chairs based on skill set and capability and providing ongoing training and support.  
 

2.8. Member development 

 

Page 41



 

 

Scrutiny provides an excellent opportunity for broader Member engagement and to support 
Members in getting an in-depth understanding of issues. To get the most out of scrutiny, Members 
need a clear sense of what is required of them as panel Members and the work involved which 
allows good scrutiny to happen. This should draw on the Council’s Member code of conduct which 
will help reaffirm expected behaviours. 
 
We observed that the quality of questioning in scrutiny panels varies; in some instances, it is 
forensic and probing, but it is often more general and exploratory and sometimes superficial. 
SMDC is clearly committed to Member development, and training was raised by some Members, 
who were clearly aware of the gaps in their knowledge and understanding.  
 

 We recommend further ‘refresher’ scrutiny training, with an update on scrutiny essentials, 
as well as a specific focus on good questioning skills and chairing skills. Since the use of 
call-in has increased it might be appropriate to include in the scrutiny refresher training to 
ensure understanding of its purpose. For some Members, a more bespoke approach 
through coaching, mentoring or one-to-one training may be more effective to achieve the 
standards desired by Members and the Council.  

 

2.9. Committee structure and timetabling 

 
Changing the structure of scrutiny committees is rarely a universal solution to bring about 
immediate changes, the cultural issues are more important. However, we received feedback from 
the majority of interviewees (Members and Officers) that the current structure of four scrutiny 
committees for a council the size of SMDC is not the most effective use of resources. 
 
The council’s internal review of scrutiny in 2014/15 identified local authorities of a similar size to 
SMDC tend to operate with less scrutiny committees. 

 We would advise SMDC to review the number of committees. The Health Scrutiny Panel 
often deals with matters outside the Council’s responsibility and duplication with County 
Council health scrutiny was reported. Merging the Health Panel with the Communities 
Panel is one option, as there appears to be significant crossover between the two, this 
would enable Officer and Member resources to be more focussed.  

 The 19 Members sitting on each panel is also a very high number to enable effective 
scrutiny and provide opportunities for everyone to engage. A reduction in committee 
Membership should also be considered.  

Currently the scrutiny committees at SMDC tend to meet on a cycle that falls shortly before 
Cabinet, which can inevitably lead to a focus on upcoming Cabinet decisions, rather than focussing 
on scrutiny’s independent work plan.  
 
Effective forward planning should allow for scrutiny to be forewarned months in advance of 
particularly critical decisions. Scheduling scrutiny meetings further upstream of the decision-
making process and meeting more frequently, but with shorter and more focused agendas, can 
relieve the burden of longer meeting cycles. Such forward planning also helps with fitting greater 
pre-decision scrutiny into the committee cycle. 
 

 In terms of both the number of committees and frequency of meetings at SMDC, there are 
clear advantages of having fewer committees which meet on a more regular basis.  

 

2.10. External engagement 

Page 42



 

 

It has been highlighted that many presentations from outside bodies to some panels are regarded 
as ‘show and tell’ sessions. In carrying out ‘external’ scrutiny work, it is important to ensure that 
scrutiny has a clear focus on objectives and is able to influence outcomes concerning the topic 
discussed.  

Regarding public engagement, scrutiny could explore and experiment with ways to allow greater 
access, openness and involvement. This could include inviting the public to offer ideas for work 
programmes and greater use of social media channels for resident input and communicating the 
progress and impact of scrutiny work. 

 
Thank you and acknowledgements 

 
This short review forms part of a Member development programme which includes training and 
development sessions to be facilitated by CfGS. 
 
We would like to thank the Chairs, Scrutiny Panel Members, Executive Members, and Officers who 
took part in interviews and the survey for their time, insights and open views.  
 
Yours sincerely,   
 
Kate Grigg 
Senior Research Officer / Review Lead 
  

Page 43



 

 

Appendix – Examples of scrutiny work programming selection/prioritisation tools 
 
Waverley Borough Council2 

 

                                                 
2
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_to

pics.pdf 
 

Page 44

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf


 

 

South Cambridgeshire District Council3   

                                                 
3
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20

Topic%20Selection.pdf 

Page 45

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf


 

 

Warwickshire County Council4 

 

                                                 
4
 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53 

Page 46

https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53


Scrutiny Review Workshop 
Breakout Room Notes 

29 September 2021 

 
Room 1  
 

Cllrs Atkins, Bowen, Flunder, Gledhill, Hall, Herdman 

Andrew Stokes, Sarah Porru Sally Hampton 
 

 Due to the major changes with Health and Social Care some members were 
reluctant for the Health & Community Panels to be merged. Much consideration 
also needed to be given to environmental/climate change items. There could be 

occasions when it would be more effective for the 2 Panels to join on certain 
subjects.  

 There should be a degree of flexibility as to when scrutiny panels met, meetings 
should be shorter, focus on more topical strategic issues and meet more 

frequently. Presentations should not be overlong. 

 Duplication may occur if matters were dealt with by the County’s Health & Care 
Committee and the SMDC Health Panel. It was highlighted that the Health Panel 

should focus on matters which were specific to the Moorlands. 

 There were suggestions for the Health Panel to consider Primary Care and 

matters occurring outside of the County. 

 Some members were of the opinion that they needed to feel they had more 

ownership of the improvement to policies 

 More recommendations needed to be made by scrutiny panels and fewer reports 
should be received for noting. 

 Pre-meetings were welcomed to assist with a questioning strategy and to ensure 
members were better prepared. 

 There was agreement that more questions were required from members of the 
ruling group and an analysis of member participation at meetings was requested. 

A suggestion was made for Chairs to encourage more questions during 
meetings. 

 The level of public involvement in meetings should be increased and the Council 

should publicise the work carried out by the scrutiny panels. 
 

 
Room 2 
 

Cllrs Hart, Hawkins, Holmes, Hoptroff, Jackson 
Tanya Cooper, Pat Trafford 

 

 Poor response to questionnaire – more needed. 

 Agenda items arrive too late and often too big.  

 SMDC not informing the public what we’re doing e.g. Climate Change. As a result 
– rarely any feedback. 

 Many members left in the cold. Scrutiny seems to be on a decision, not an idea. 

 Recent Call-ins were badly put together. 

 Questions need to be put directly to Portfolio Holders in advance to give chance 
to prepare an answer. 

Page 47



 Lack of involvement from Conservative members of Panels – silenced by the 
Leader. 

 Huge agendas – too much too late. Needs bite-size chunks. 

 Some members don’t read in advance. Not the case at Resources. 

 Resources – more able to pick out a relevant section to concentrate on. 

 Need a ‘progress’ column in the WP, should be earlier in the agenda. 

 Need more Panels with fewer members & smaller spheres of influence. 

 Panels should be equal balance politically. 

 Need less Panels – 3 ideal. 

 Pre-meetings - won’t work if cross-party. Labour already do their own. 

 Pre-meetings - good where external guests are attending so that questions can 
be co-ordinated. Not needed if no guests. 

 
 
Room 3  

 

Cllrs Jones, Page, Plant, Price, Riley,  
Neil Rodgers, Jacqui McKinlay 

 

 Sceptical/ dismissive that members skills are considered when choosing 

committee chairs.  

 Keen to see a members’ skills audit take place so the leader know what’s about 

each members’ experience and skills and what they can bring to different roles 
and committees. 

 Concern about the accessibility of meetings and opportunities due to the timings 
of meeting for those people working or with caring responsibilities.  

 Concerned about the lack of challenge from the ruling group members in 

committee meetings. The opposition do lots of preparation and some others are 
not reading the papers.  

 Would like to see less presentations and for information items at the meetings.  

 A view that there is not enough business to keep all the committees busy and this 

leads to them being cancelled at the last minute.  

 Some cabinet members do not take scrutiny seriously, if they are there, they do 
take accountability for items.  

 Talk of needing more information to members more widely, rather than using 
scrutiny as a way to keep them informed and leading to more information sharing 

than scrutiny. This would help scrutiny meetings to be more focused.  
 

 
Room 4  

 

Cllrs Coleman, Ralphs, Roberts, Shaw, Sheldon, Swindlehurst, Taylor 
Mark Trillo, Kate Grigg 

 

 Discussion about the value of a pre-meet: some members had reservations 
around a potential doubling-up of work, but the need to keep it short and 

focussed on objectives and lines of inquiry rather than scripting or rehearsing was 
emphasised. 

Page 48



 Some members keen to use the pre-meet to bring their own professional/life 
experience into the process as well as co-ordinating that with other members, 

and take a lead on topics they are knowledgeable about. 

 All members very keen to see more pre-decision scrutiny, and scrutiny getting 

involved at an earlier stage in decision-making. 

 Administration members wanting to ensure that challenge was seen as positive. 

 POLITICS: (formed the bulk of our discussion) all members a bit sceptical about 
scrutiny improvement as politics was seen as such a barrier. Leader very aware 

that politics cannot be removed from the situation and saw it as an issue in 
implementing any changes with scrutiny.  

 Culture perceived by all as very us vs. them and a recognition that unless it is 

properly dealt with and members change the way in which they work then it will 
continue to hinder the process. 

 The size of committees highlighted as an issue, and the fact that all members are 
rarely in attendance – many mentioned reviewing it to consider quality rather than 
quantity. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 

CfGS – Scrutiny Review Recommendations – Suggested Response 
 

Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 

Member development We recommend further ‘refresher’ scrutiny 
training, with an update on scrutiny 
essentials, as well as a specific focus on 
good questioning skills and chairing skills. 
Since the use of call-in has increased it might 
be appropriate to include in the scrutiny 
refresher training to ensure understanding of 
its purpose. For some Members, a more 
bespoke approach through coaching, 
mentoring or one-to-one training may be 
more effective to achieve the standards 
desired by Members and the Council.  

 Programme of training / 
development for non-executive 
councillors  

 Ongoing training and 
development for Chairs / Vice 
Chairs of Scrutiny 

Clarity on scrutiny’s role and 
responsibilities 
 

Our conversations suggest a need for more 
clarity on how scrutiny’s role is undertaken in 
a cross-party manner. This is about 
developing a shared understanding of the 
particular and unique way for scrutiny to add 
value to council governance. On a strategic 
level, there needs to be more of an emphasis 
on seeing scrutiny as a vital part of council 
business and governance, with clear 
ownership regarding its important role in 
improving policy and holding to account.  
 

Collaborative approach to 
scrutiny 
 

There was a broad agreement that all 
Members have a duty to uphold their 
responsibilities as a scrutineer, attend 
meetings and work towards a shared goal in 
their committee. This is an aspect that needs 
further emphasis. 
 

Scrutiny – Executive relationship 
 

SMDC may consider reviewing the 
Executive-Scrutiny protocol to outline and 
reaffirm expectations, and to improve 
communication and co-ordination between 
scrutiny and the Executive. An Executive-
Scrutiny protocol should deal with the 
practical workings of scrutiny as well as the 
cultural dynamics. It might also be useful for 
feedback on scrutiny’s recommendations to 
be formalised within the protocol, in order for 
the panels to monitor the progress of their 
output.  

 Review Executive / Scrutiny 
Protocol 

Scrutiny’s focus 
 

For scrutiny to be more strategic there needs 
to be change from both scrutiny and the 
Executive. If the Council wants more 
emphasis on shaping policy, challenging and 
holding to account, then scrutiny will need 
earlier access to and involvement with the 
core policy and decision-making activities of 
the Executive. 

 Establish Overview & Scrutiny 
Programming Group: 
o Cabinet / O & S Panel Chairs 

/ Opposition Group Leaders 
o Consider Cabinet Work 

Programme and agree 
forward plan of scrutiny 
work 

We noted that scrutiny could be more 
involved in the budget process, and at an 
earlier stage for any meaningful input. 
Scrutinising the Council’s finances, including 
the medium-term financial plan, monitoring 
financial and operational performance, 
together with commercial partnerships and 
other external arrangements does not seem 
to be sufficiently explored.  

Work programming We recommend an annual process for  Annual scrutiny workshop to 

Page 51



Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 
 developing the work programme across all of 

the scrutiny committees, engaging Members, 
Officers, partners and the public to prioritise 
the topics for review. This will help avoid 
duplication and ensure that Members’ work 
in scrutiny makes the most effective 
contribution possible on the most important 
issues to the district. Work programming 
could take place through a Member 
workshop, where a shortlist of priority topics 
for the next 12 months are identified 
according to a selection criteria, discussed 
on their merit for scrutiny, and voted on.  

confirm work programmes 

Currently the work programme is the last 
item on the agenda at scrutiny meetings, we 
would recommend bringing it to the 
beginning, so it can benefit from more 
considered discussion rather than being 
subject to the inevitable end of meeting 
fatigue. 

 Reorder agendas 

Meeting preparation SMDC should consider introducing pre-
meetings before formal committee between 
all scrutiny Members to provide the space to 
set common objectives and possibly to reach 
consensus on lines of enquiry and 
questioning strategy.  

 Develop approach with Chairs of 
Panels 

Committee structure and 
timetabling 
 

We would advise SMDC to review the 
number of committees. The Health Scrutiny 
Panel often deals with matters outside the 
Council’s responsibility and duplication with 
County Council health scrutiny was reported. 
Merging the Health Panel with the 
Communities Panel is one option, as there 
appears to be significant crossover between 
the two, this would enable Officer and 
Member resources to be more focussed.  

 Review number of Overview & 
Scrutiny Panels 

 Consider structure of Panels and 
potential to create sub-groups to 
focus on specific areas of work  

 Explore and experiment with 
ways to allow greater public 
access, openness and 
involvement 

The 19 Members sitting on each panel is 
also a very high number to enable effective 
scrutiny and provide opportunities for 
everyone to engage. A reduction in 
committee Membership should also be 
considered.  
In terms of both the number of committees 
and frequency of meetings at SMDC, there 
are clear advantages of having fewer 
committees which meet on a more regular 
basis.  

 
 
 

 

Page 52


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the previous meeting
	7.1 Audit and Accounts Committee - Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A

	7.2 Audit and Accounts Committee - Process for Appointing the External Auditor
	7.3 Scrutiny Review
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


